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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Ferry Building, begun in 1895 and completed in 1903, is a San Francisco
landmark in the neo-classic Beaux Arts style. This steel-frame building, which
extends 659 feet in length, is distinguished by a 235-foot high central clock
tower and a pavilion flanked by two prominent wings. The slender, square and
lofty tower, inspired by the 12th century Giralda Tower in Seville, Spain, is
subtly translated into neo-classical terms. The tower openings, pierced by
slender Ionic columns, are surmounted by dentillated and bracketed cornices.

The prominent 23-foot clock faces on the tower's four sides were the largest in
the United States at the time of installation.

Corinthian paired columns punctuate the central ground floor pavilion
archways, and a three-story graceful arcade system flanks both sides of this
large central pavilion. The window treatment in the southern flanking wing
remains as originally designed, with triple windows at the second story framed
by pilastered arches. The original window treatment in the northern wing is
modified with modern metal sash and glass. Early in the history of the building
a footbridge was built which extended from the second floor level just north of the
main entrance across to the west side of the Embarcadero.

An 1898 report describes the building's original appearance in some detail:

"The whole of the westerly front of the building is faced with sandstone from

the Sites Quarries, near Colusa, California....The roof of the building is of
corrugated iron and the rear and end front of the building are of brick and
galvanized iron." More importantly, the report goes on to describe the building's
original interior which has been much altered over the last 40 years. ''The
interior of the building in the first story is to be finished in kiln-dried Oregon
pine, with the exception of the space around the grand stairway which will be
executed in pink Tennessee marble. Above that point and running up to a total
height of 34 feet is finished in a series of arches in buffcolored pressed brick."

Originally, the ground floor was broken into spaces assigned for the
facilities of the various railway companies whose rails terminated across the
bay in Oakland, and in Marin County. Waiting rooms at this level were smoking
rooms for men only and connected by stairway with the main waiting rooms on the
upper level., The second floor has a promenade, or ''mave" as it was referred to.
Running the full length of the building, it was 48 feet wide and 42 feet high with
skylights overhead. The main waiting rooms were on the bay side; offices occupied
the Embarcadero side. Departing passengers boarded the ferries at this level simul-
taneously while arriving passengers exited at street level.

In 1956 the upper floor was remodeled into office space by William G. Merchant.
In that same year ferry service across the bay was discontinued, and most of the
Ferry Building is now used for office space, housing the World Trade Centers,
commercial offices and offices of the Port.

Although the interior has been altered into office space, Eygmgxterior
retains its original appearance to a remarkable degree.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Ferry Building, originally known as the Union Ferry Depot, is a San

Francisco architectural, engineering and historical landmark. Originally
commissioned in 1894, it was officially opened on July 13, 1898, and completed

in 1903. The building was designed by prominent San Francisco architect, A. Page
Brown who died shortly after contracts for its construction were let on December 26,
1895. In February, 1896, Edward R. Swain was engaged as Supervising Architect,

and assisted by H.C. Holmes, Chief Engineer for the Port.

The building's most prominent feature, the 235 foot tower, was modeled after
Seville's 12th century Giralda Tower. There was only one other like it in the
United States - the 1890 Madison Square Garden tower designed by McKim, Mead and
White, in whose firm Brown had been employed prior to practicing in San Francisco.

The building, designed in the neo-classic Beaux Arts style, became an immediate
San Francisco landmark. This steel-frame building was hardly touched by the 1906
earthquake, due in part to its formidable reinforced-concrete foundation.
Pioneered by Ernest Ransome, the use of concrete as a building material at the
turn of the century was an innovative technique, still not wholely accepted by
most civil engineers. In honor of its engineering accomplishments, the American
Society of Civil Engineers designated the Ferry Building as a National-Historic
Civil Engineering Landmark in November, 1975.

Until the Golden Gate and Bay Bridges opened in the late 1930's, the "Union

Ferry Depot" served 50 million bay commuters a year -- more than 100,000 per day.
This figure was surpassed only by London's Charing Cross Station as the busiest
passenger terminal in the world. Eight ferry slips were utilized for 170 bay
crossings a day at 10 cents a ride. Arrivals in or departures from San Francisco
to and from all points, with the exception of the peninsula, were made by boat
from the Ferry Building. The area in front of the Ferry Building was also the hub
of the local transportation system with cable car and streetcar lines from all
parts of the city terminating there.

The building, a major early 20th century western transportation and mail
terminus, remains one of San Francisco's most prominent landmarks, and a
significant contribution to turn-of-the-century architectural and engineering
history.
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Verbal Boundary Description:

Commencing at the intersection of the northwesterly line of Mission
Street with the southwesterly line of The Embarcadero (x = 1,453,401..48;
y = 476,572.03), running thence N 46 18' 03" E along the northwesterly
line of Mission Street extended northeasterly for a distance of 233.92
feet; thence at a right angle northwesterly for a distance of 279.70
feet to the true point of beginning (x = 1,453,377.36; y = 476,935.83);
thence at a deflection angle of 8 39' 12" to the right from the last
aforesaid course for a distance of 261.00 feet; thence at a right angle
southwesterly for a distance of 25.92 feet; thence at a right angle
northwesterly for a distance of 179.50 feet; thence at a right angle
northeasterly for a distance of 25.92 feet; thence at a right angle
northwesterly for a distance of 234.50 feet; thence at a right angle
northeasterly for a distance of 166.50 feet; thence at a right angle
southeasterly for a distance of 277.50 feet; thence at a right angle
northeasterly for a distance of 40.25 feet; thence at a right angle
southeasterly for a distance of 72.55 feet; thence at a right angle
southwesterly for a distance of 13.85 feet; thence at a right angle
southeasterly for a distance of 21.00 feet; thence at a right angle
southwesterly for a distance of 26.40 feet; thence at a right angle
southeasterly for a distance of 67.80 feet; thence at a right angle
northeasterly for a distance of 4.4O feet; thence at a right angle
southeasterly for a distance of 15.70 feet; thence at a right angle
northeasterly for a distance of 7.60 feet; thence at a right angle
southeasterly for a distance of 11.33 feet; thence at a right angle
southwesterly for a distance of 11.68 feet; thence at a right angle
southeasterly for a distance of 209.12 feet; thence at a right angle
southwesterly for a distance of 166.50 feet to the true point of beginning,
and containing 120,716 square feet of area, more or less.
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